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ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF:

WATER QUALITY STANDARDS AND

EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS FOR THE

CHICAGO AREA WATERWAY SYSTEM

AND THE LOWER DES PLAINES

RIVER: PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

TO 35 Ill. Adm. Code Parts 301,

302, 303 and 304

REPORT OF THE PROCEEDINGS held in the

above entitled cause before Hearing Officer Marie

Tipsord, called by the Illinois Pollution Control

Board, taken by Jennifer L. Wiesch, CSR, for the

State of Illinois, at the Michael Bilanic Bui’lding,

160 North LaSalle Street, Room N-502, Chicago,

Illinois, on Tuesday, the 9th day of November, 2010,

commencing at the hour of 9:00 a.m.

R08—09

(Rulemaking—

Water)

p
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1 APPEARANCES

2

3 MS. MARIE TIPSORD, Hearing Officer

4 MS. ALISA LIU, Environmental Scientist

5 MR. ANAND RAO, Senior Environmental Scientist

6 MR. TANNER GIRARD, Acting Chairman

7 MR. THOMAS JOHNSON

8 MS. CARRIE ZALEWSKI

9 MS. ANDREA MOORE

10 MR. DANIEL ROBERTSON, on behalf of GARY BLANKENSHIP

11

12 ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
BY: MS. DEBORAH J. WILLIAMS

13 MS. STEPHANIE N. DIERS
1021 North Grand Avenue East

14 P.O. Box 19276
Springfield, Illinois 62794—9276

15 (217) 782—5544

16

BARNES & THORNBURG LLP
17 BY: MR. F’REDRIC P. ANDES

One North Wacker Drive
18 Suite 4400

Chicago, Illinois 60606—2833
19 (312) 357—1313

Appearing on behalf of the Metropolitan Water
20 Reclamation District

21

SIERRA CLUB and PRAIRIE RIVERS
22 BY: MR. ALBERT ETTINGER

53 West Jackson Boulevard
23 Chicago, Illinois 60604

(773) 818—4825
24
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1 A P P E A R A N C E S (continued)

2

3 ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND POLICY CENTER
BY: MS. JESSICA DEXTER

4 35 East Wacker Drive
Suite 1300
Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) 795—3707

6

7 CITGO and SNR DENTON
BY: MR. ARIEL TESHER

8 233 South Wacker Drive
Suite 7800
Chicago, Illinois 60606
(312) 876—2380

10

II CHEMICAL INDUSTRY COUNCIL OF ILLINOIS
BY: MS. LISA FREDE

12 1400 East Touhy Avenue
Suite 110

13 Des Plaines, Illinois 60018
(847) 544—5995

14

15 SOUTHEAST ENVIRONMENTAL TASK FORCE
BY: MR. KEITH HARLEY

16 205 West Monroe Street
Fourth Floor

17 Chicago, Illinois 60606
(312) 726—2938

18

19 MIDWEST GENERATION
MS. SUSAN M. FRANZETTI

20 10 South LaSalle Street
Suite 3600

21 Chicago, Illinois 60603
(312) 251—5250

22

23

24 REPORTED BY: Jennifer L. Wiesch, CSR, RPR, CRR
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1 we will mark the pre-filed testimony of Jennifer

2 Wasik as Exhibit 431. Seeing none, it’s

3 Exhibit 431.

4 (Document marked as IPCB Exhibit

5 No. 431 for identification.)

6 MR. ANDES: And we also have a corrected

7 page, which I provided to IPA yesterday afternoon.

8 We found an error in attachment eight. The number

9 of species collected in 2009 was actually 11, not

10 eight. So weave a revised version of attachment

11 eight to introduce.

12 MS. TIPSORD: All right. If there’s no

13 objection, we’ll mark the revised table as

14 Exhibit 432. Seeing none, it’s Exhibit 432.

15 (Document marked as IPCB Exhibit

16 No. 432 for identification.)

17 MS. TIPSORD: And with that, we’ll begin with

18 the questions from the IEPA.

19 JENNIFER WASIK,

20 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

21 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

22 EXAMINATION

23 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

24 Q. Good morning, Ms. Wasik. I think I’ll
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Page 10

1 obviously, that would be --

2 A. Well, for --

3 Q. -- not in --

4 A. -— chlorinating our effluent, by the time

5 it was discharged, there would no longer be

6 chlorine, it would be dechlorinated. We wouldn’t --

7 well, there -- we wouldn’t be discharging --

8 Q. Or you could not be -- I mean, that would

9 be the alternative; right? In the ‘80s, that’s what

10 was happening; correct?

11 A. Right. In the ‘80s, we were

12 chlorinating, and it was shown to be -- that after

13 we stopped chlorinating, there was a large

14 improvement in the fish population.

15 MR. ETTINGER: I’m Albert Ettinger. That’s

16 E—t—t-i—n—g—e---r. I represent the Sierra Club and

17 Prairie Rivers. I do not represent ELPC. The -- my

18 question is —- and this follow-ups on yours.

19 You say, “Another long-term option the

20 District has been asked to complete an efficiency

21 study on using the planned effluent to produce toxic

22 zones. This would focus mainly on the use of

23 ammonia discharge.” By who were you asked to do

24 this?



Page 11

1 THE WITNESS: This was with discussions, I

2 think, at the executive committee of the Asian Carp

3 Regional Coordinating Committee.

4 MR. ETTINGER: Do you know who was pushing

5 that?

6 MR. ANDES: Let’s -- let’s --

7 THE WITNESS: I’m not aware --

8 MR. ANDES: You want to rephrase that so it

9 does not talk about pushing.

10 THE WITNESS: I would, yeah. I’m not aware

11 of ——

12 MR. ETTINGER: Do you know who is proposing

13 that?

14 THE WITNESS: I’m not sure. I wasn’t part of

15 those discussions. I don’t think anyone is pushing

16 it by any means, but it was -— I think it was an

17 option that was discussed in that meeting, and so we

18 were asked to do a feasibility study --

19 MR. ETTINGER: If a --

20 THE WITNESS: -- for --

21 MR. ETTINGER: Just to clarify --

22 THE WITNESS: Just a literature search.

23 MR. ETTINGER: Just to clarify, it wasn’t the

24 District’s idea?
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1 THE WITNESS: I’m not even sure.

2 MR. ETTINGER: Well, was it the District’s

3 idea?

4 THE WITNESS: Like I —- like I said, I don’t

5 know. I wasn’t part of that discussion. That was

6 an executive level...

7 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. So is it your

8 understanding that anything would be done downstream

9 to take the ammonia out, or would it be anticipated

10 that the ammonia would just go ahead and kill the

11 Upper Illinois River as it did down to Peru until

12 the ‘20s and ‘30s?

13 THE WITNESS: I believe it would be removed.

14 MR. ETTINGER: Where?

15 THE WITNESS: I don’t know.

16 MR. ETTINGER: Thank you.

17 THE WITNESS: I mean, the --

18 MR. ANDES: It’s your understanding that the

19 District was asked to consider this option, correct?

20 THE WITNESS: Right. As far as I know,

21 our —— part of it is a literature search to just

22 determine basically what levels of ammonia might

23 have an effect on Asian carp.

24 MR. ETTINGER: Thank you.
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1 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

2 Q. So I think -- I mean, accepting your

3 answer that you don’t thing it would work, I think

4 my question was: Is that one of the suggested

5 potential strategies by the -- what do you call

6 this mini Asian carp -—

7 MR. ANDES: Is there a particular statement

8 you’re citing to?

9 MS. WILLIAMS: No, I’m not citing to

10 anything.

11 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

12 Q. I’m asking if that’s one of the

13 potential --

14 A. Not that I’m --

15 Q. -- strategies that -—

16 A. -- aware of.

17 Q. -- you could --

18 MR. ETTINGER: You’re not aware of a specific

19 recommendation within the Asian carp framework for

20 consideration of nutrient reduction as a means of

21 controlling Asian carp population?

22 THE WITNESS: Specifically related to the

23 distract of reducing nutrients?

24 MR. ETTINGER: I don’t know if it’s specific.
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1 Unfortunately, I don’t have the document with me.

2 MS. WILLIAMS: Well, is it an exhibit? I

3 mean, I’d rather --

4 MR. ETTINGER: Do you have the framework?

5 MS. WILLIAMS: I have —- I have the May 2010.

6 MS. TIPSORD: And, Ms. Wasik, keep your voice

7 up. You’re fading away a little bit.

8 THE WITNESS: Okay.

9 MS. TIPSORD: Again with all the outside

10 noise, I’m not sure how much they can hear.

11 THE WITNESS: Okay.

12 MR. ETTINGER: Yes. Page 37 of the Asian

13 Carp Control Strategy Framework Study Efficacy of

14 Reducing Asian Carp Food Source Through Nutrient

15 Removal. Are you aware of that?

16 THE WITNESS: I’ve read the document. I

17 haven’t read that page recently, but.

18 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. Well --

19 THE WITNESS: The —- there’s a study being

20 done, if that’s what you’re saying.

21 MR. ETTINGER: That’s one of the

22 recommendations, but —-

23 THE WITNESS: I don’t have the document with

24 me, but —-
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1 MR. ETTINGER: We can all read the document.

2 We were just asking if you knew anything in addition

3 to the document, and I --

4 MS. TIPSORD: If you don’t have the document

5 with you, if you would like to borrow one of ours,

6 because it is an attachment to your testimony,

7 because I would guess that you’re going to get more

8 questions.

9 THE WITNESS: Okay.

10 MS. TIPSORD: Okay. So, I mean, I have a

11 copy of it right here that I haven’t marked on if

12 you would like to borrow it.

13 THE WITNESS: Okay.

14 MR. ETTINGER: I’m sorry, were you going on

15 to ——

16 MS. WILLIAMS: You can --

17 MR. ETTINGER: -- nutrients or --

18 MS. WILLIAMS: I’m going to flip the page, so

19 if you want to ask follow—ups, that’s fine.

20 MR. ETTINGER: I was just going to ask: Is

21 it your understanding that agriculture is a major

22 source of nutrients in the Upper Dresden Island

23 Pool?

24 THE WITNESS: I’m not sure in the Upper
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1 already low?

2 THE WITNESS: They’re quite low, yeah.

3 MR. ETTINGER: Are you a fish biologist? Do

4 you consider yourself a fish biologist?

5 THE WITNESS: No.

6 MR. ETTINGER: Do you consider yourself a

7 limnologist?

8 THE WITNESS: An aquatic biologist.

9 MR. ETTINGER: Thank you.

10 MR. ANDES: Can you explain -- is aquatic

11 biologist a broader category than a fish biologist?

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. I’m not specifically a

13 fish biologist, but I do work a lot with fish in my

14 day-to-day job.

15 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

16 Q. So I’m not an aquatic biologist or a fish

17 biologist, but I’m getting a little confused by the

18 testimony that we had yesterday and today. If you

19 conclude that the algae levels are already

20 relatively low in the CAWS, does that serve one way

21 or another to impact whether Asian carp are going to

22 move through the system?

23 A. I wouldn’t -- I don’t know if the food

24 source is actually limiting in the CAWS. I’m just
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1 testified yesterday, they may have pretty minimal

2 requirements in terms of -- in terms of a cavity

3 under some sort of object. And, you know, they may

4 find those bases in the CAWS that would be able to

5 spawn.

6 MS. TIPSORD: Mr. Harley, you’ve got a

7 follow-up?

8 MR. HARLEY: Keith Harley on behalf of the

9 Southeast Environmental Task Force. Are you

10 familiar with spawning that takes place in Lake

11 Calumet with Coho salmon?

12 THE WITNESS: No.

13 MR. HARLEY: Would you characterize Lake

14 Michigan as a high quality habitat for purposes of

15 spawning?

16 THE WITNESS: I mean, it depends on what fish

17 species.

18 MR. HARLEY: You haven’t distinguished among

19 fish species in your —- in your testimony?

20 THE WITNESS: Right. In my answer, I guess

21 what I’m trying to say with the channel cats is

22 among certain intolerant —- or I’m sorry, among

23 certain tolerant fish species, there could be a

24 limited amount of spawning going on.
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1 MR. HARLEY: Where?

2 THE WITNESS: In the CAWS.

3 MR. ETTINGER: I’m sorry --

4 MS. WILLIAMS: Can I interrupt a second?

5 MR. ETTINGER: Yeah, can I just interrupt

6 you? You say “the CAWS,” I just want to —— are you

7 using -- when you say “the CAWS,” you mean the whole

8 thing, every -- from the top of the North Shore

9 Channel to the -- the entire thing? So when you say

10 there’s no habitat in the CAWS, you’re saying

11 there’s little or no habitat in the entire system?

12 THE WITNESS: I’m saying that there is little

13 habitat throughout the system. There’s certainly

14 areas that have more suitable habitat than others.

15 They’re more little pockets —-

16 MR. ETTINGER: I just --

17 THE WITNESS: —— as we were talking about.

18 MR. ETTINGER: But I just wanted to -- I

19 just wanted to clarify what we were saying is the

20 CANS, and that was it.

21 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. Go ahead. You can

22 finish your answer.

23 THE WITNESS: But I guess you have to clarify

24 which fish species you’re talking about.
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1 MR. HARLEY: I guess my question is:

2 Generally would you refer to that as being a

3 suitable habitat for spawning of some species?

4 THE WITNESS: Well, a lot of fish species

5 will spawn in rivers and then live as adults in

6 lakes or feed in lakes, or I’m just not sure of

7 that.

8 MR. HARLEY: Are you familiar with that

9 occurring in the relationship between Lake Michigan

10 and the CAWS, that phenomena of fish species which

11 are spawning in the CAWS and then would be living as

12 adults in the lake?

13 THE WITNESS: It’s possible. I’m not —- I’m

14 not sure.

15 MR. HARLEY: As an aquatic biologist, you’re

16 not familiar with that occurring?

17 THE WITNESS: With spawning in the lake -- or

18 spawning in rivers and moving specifically into Lake

19 Michigan?

20 MR. HARLEY: Yeah.

21 THE WITNESS: As a fishery biologist, I’m not

22 sure that that’s occurring within the CAWS in the

23 Great Lakes.

24 MR. HARLEY: You’re not familiar with that?
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Page 39

1 monitoring is an accurate reflection of species --

2 the species that are present in the CAWS and their

3 relative abundance.

4 So, you know, I think the goals of those

5 two projects are extremely different in terms of,

6 you know, the reasons that the District monitors

7 fish to see how basically our operations may affect

8 the CAWS versus the Asian carp monitoring, which,

9 you know, they’re basically looking to identify the

10 presence of a fish that is present at extremely low

11 densities, if at all, throughout the CAWS.

12 MR. ANDES: So is it accurate to say that

13 while the District could pursue a policy that would

14 kill all the fish and then count them, that’s

15 probably not a productive program?

16 THE WITNESS: No, I don’t think that would be

17 reasonable or feasible for us to do that.

18 MR. ETTINGER: Why wouldn’t it be?

19 MR. ANDES: To kill all the fish?

20 MR. ETTINGER: You said --

21 THE WITNESS: Well --

22 MR. ETTINGER: -- it wasn’t a reasonable

23 program.

24 THE WITNESS: Well, we don’t --
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Page 42

1 Wentworth and 170th, those are the —-

2 MS. TIPSORD: I’m sorry, Ms. Wasik, I

3 didn’t --

4 THE WITNESS: I’m sorry.

5 MS. TIPSORD: -- hear that.

6 THE WITNESS: Those are in the -- I guess the

7 southern portion of the Little Calumet River.

8 Haisted -—

9 MR. HARLEY: Is that -- I’m sorry to

10 interrupt, but is that annual monitoring?

11 THE WITNESS: No. Those are on a four-year

12 basis.

13 MR. HARLEY: Okay.

14 THE WITNESS: Then Ashland on the Little

15 Calumet, as well as Ashland on the Cal Sag.

16 MR. HARLEY: How frequently is that

17 monitoring done?

18 THE WITNESS: Those are on the rotating

19 four—year basis. Cicero and the Cal Sag is

20 annually. Route 83 and the Cal Sag Channel is on a

21 four—year rotating basis. I believe that’s all that

22 we do in the CAWS portion of the Calumet system.

23 MR. HARLEY: Thank you.

24 MR. ANDES: Just one follow-up on that. Is
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1 there any other public agency that’s out there doing

2 this kind of monitoring?

3 THE WITNESS: On an annual basis, I believe

4 the Water Reclamation District prior to the Asian

5 carp monitoring was the only one regularly

6 monitoring in the CAWS.

7 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

8 Q. The only agency?

9 A. I believe so.

10 MR. ANDES: So no state agencies?

11 THE WITNESS: Not on a —- I think that the

12 DNR has rotational, you know, monitoring for fish

13 throughout the state. So they may be in the CAWS

14 from time to time, but it’s not as extensive as our

15 monitoring.

16 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

17 Q. And Midwest Generation also has an

18 extensive monitoring program that’s gone on for some

19 time, correct?

20 A. Not throughout the CAWS, but in the Lower

21 Ship Canal, I believe.

22 Q. Question six refers to the quote on page

23 15 of your testimony. Quote, “These barriers” -— I

24 suppose by “these barriers,” you’re referring to the
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Page 45

1 suggesting we kill all the fish so then they could

2 be restocked, correct?

3 MS. WILLIAMS: Are you asking me a question,

4 Fred, or are you testifying, what, are you

5 objecting?

6 MR. ANDES: No, I’m just trying to --

7 MS. WILLIAMS: You said that you’re

8 clarifying. I don’t -- there’s no question to

9 clarify.

10 MR. ANDES: I think there was.

11 BY THE WITNESS:

12 A. At this time while there is still

13 likelihood or possibility of rotenone events, I

14 don’t believe they’ll be restocking.

15 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

16 Q. Do you know anything about the future

17 plans for rotenone events?

18 A. They have -- I’ve been on a

19 teleconference with the monitoring and rapid

20 response work group for the AR -- the ACRCC, and

21 right now the only plan for rotenone that is

22 scheduled is during maintenance of one of the

23 barriers, they’re planning on using rotenone as a

24 deterrent between barriers 2-A and 2-B. But the
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Page 47

1 on the restocking question. With respect to native

2 fish, is the ability to restock them at all affected

3 by their availability?

4 THE WITNESS: Yes. And then you could also

5 say that restocking isn’t necessarily going to be -—

6 mimic what would naturally be there, what’s

7 naturally in the CAWS. But restocking it wouldn’t

8 necessarily be a viable option.

9 MS. FRANZETTI: And do I understand

10 correctly, then, that not all native species that

11 you’re trying to restock you can obtain on the

12 commercial market, so to speak, in order -—

13 THE WITNESS: Right.

14 MS. FRANZETTI: —- to do the restocking, is

15 that right?

16 THE WITNESS: Right. I mean, we are likely

17 to restock, I think, game fish. But in terms of,

18 you know, a whole fish community of various species,

19 I find it doubtful they would be able to stock all

20 of the species that would be knocked out by

21 rotenone.

22 MR. ETTINGER: Well, why be so, you know,

23 pro-abate? I mean, why can’t we stock game fish

24 that aren’t native?
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Page 52

1 sure. It’s an existing consent decree. We can

2 provide further --

3 MR. ETTINGER: It’s an existing consent

4 decree? It doesn’t relate to the carp?

5 THE WITNESS: Oh, no.

6 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. And so this reduction

7 in diversions has been being planned for how long?

8 THE WITNESS: I’m not sure. I can find out.

9 I’m not sure.

10 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. Is it the intention of

11 the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District to allow

12 malarial conditions and a visible public nuisance in

13 the waters of the CAWS?

14 THE WITNESS: No. As I said --

15 MR. ETTINGER: Is that part of the plan --

16 THE WITNESS: No. As I --

17 MR. ETTINGER: -— the consent decree?

18 THE WITNESS: As I said, the diversion has to

19 be reduced overall, not necessarily at Wilmette. So

20 it’s possible that at Wilmette, we would not change

21 the diversion position for this particular

22 requirement.

23 MR. ETTINGER: So --

24 THE WITNESS: The conditions that you’re



Page 53

1 talking about, I believe, refer to the preliminary

2 injunction.

3 MR. ETTINGER: I’m just referring to your

4 testimony, and you talk a lot about reduction and

5 diversions, and I’m trying to relate the reduction

6 and diversions to something to do with the carp.

7 And so what does it have to do with the carp?

8 THE WITNESS: There was a preliminary

9 injunction, and this was -— I was referring to the

10 Federal Court case that’s pending now against the

11 District and the Army Corps of Engineers. There

12 were several requirements that are outlined in my

13 testimony through the preliminary injunction.

14 MR. ETTINGER: Is it your understanding that

15 the preliminary injunction was granted or denied?

16 THE WITNESS: At this point, neither. I’m

17 sorry, I’m not talking about the Supreme Court case,

18 I’m talking about the Federal Court case in the

19 Illinois District Court.

20 MR. ETTINGER: The District Court has not

21 ruled on the preliminary injunction --

22 THE WITNESS: Right.

23 MR. ETTINGER: -- motion. But you feel that

24 it may grant the preliminary injunction motion, and
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1 diversion, there will be a stagnant area of waterway

2 between the lake and our water reclamation plant.

3 You know, if that —- if that is an immediate order,

4 obviously we wouldn’t be able to do something about

5 it necessarily right away.

6 MR. ETTINGER: Oh, okay. Well, I live up

7 there now, and I can tell you that it’s kind of

8 stagnant a lot of the time already. Okay. Thanks.

9 I think I understand. I —- okay. I think I

10 understand how the diversion fits or doesn’t fit.

11 Thank you.

12 MR. ANDES: So just to clarify for a minute,

13 because I want to make sure we understand what

14 you’re saying about the North Shore Channel, so if

15 the injunction were granted and it forced the

16 District to reduce or eliminate diversions at

17 Wilmette, you’re talking about the conditions that

18 would result in the North Shore Channel because

19 there would be no water?

20 THE WITNESS: Right.

21 MR. ANDES: Okay. And do you know of any

22 options the District would have since it would be

23 prohibited from moving water into there?

24 THE WITNESS: That’s my point. I don’t think
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1 that we could do something immediately to avoid it.

2 MR. ETTINGER: Not immediately.

3 MR. ANDES: Well --

4 MR. ETTINGER: Right.

5 MR. ANDES: Well, as long as that injunction

6 lasts, there’s nothing you could do to avoid it;

7 correct?

8 THE WITNESS: Yes.

9 MR. ETTINGER: Well, has the District, to

10 your knowledge, ever studied pumping water up to the

11 top of the channel and letting it flow down?

12 THE WITNESS: Yes.

13 MR. ETTINGER: They have?

14 THE WITNESS: We don’t have any design for

15 that or contract for that, so it would -- it would

16 likely take a few years to do so.

17 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. Thank you.

18 MR. ANDES: It’d also require various permits

19 to be granted?

20 THE WITNESS: Yes.

21 MR. ETTINGER: Apparently anything can happen

22 to stop carp immediately.

23 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

24 Q. So is it your position, Ms. Wasik, that
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1 conditions will be -- have been improved by TARP.

2 Q. Thank you.

3 MR. ETTINGER: This raises a question. And

4 the next -— or one of the sentences on page 16,

5 “Stagnant septic conditions would also dominate in

6 the 1.5 mile stretch of the Chicago River mainstream

7 without flow from the lake through the Chicago River

8 controlling works.” That’s what you fear will

9 happen if the preliminary injunction is granted

10 or---

11 THE WITNESS: That will --

12 MR. ETTINGER: -- what will happen as a

13 result of the diversion controls that were being put

14 in independently?

15 THE WITNESS: No, that would not be as a

16 result of diversion controls. That would be if

17 there was an immediate preliminary injunction

18 granted that -- if that stopped diversion.

19 MR. ETTINGER: So we’ll have malarial

20 conditions in downtown Chicago as a result of this?

21 MR. ANDES: I don’t think the word “malarial”

22 was used in her ——

23 MR. ETTINGER: Oh, I’m sorry. I’m sorry.

24 Breeding ground for mosquitoes and a visible public
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1 nuisance in the main stem --

2 MR. ANDES: That’s what her testimony says.

3 MR. ETTINGER: Okay. Thank you. And that’s

4 what you -- that’s what the Metropolitan Water

5 Reclamation —-

6 THE WITNESS: Well, if you --

7 MR. ETTINGER: -- District would put up with

8 if they got the injunction?

9 THE WITNESS: If you look at my testimony,

10 you can see exactly what is laid out in the

11 preliminary injunction. I think it’s fair to say

12 that we would appeal if the preliminary injunction

13 was granted.

14 MR. ETTINGER: So we don’t need to start

15 evacuating the Board offices downtown? Thank you.

16 THE WITNESS: Okay.

17 BY MS. WILLIAMS:

18 Q. I think we’ve covered nine. Question

19 ten. You state on page 15 that, quote, “I have

20 personally removed both dead and injured fish from

21 trammel nets that were set for only 24 hours in the

22 CAWS.” Which species of fish did you personally

23 remove from these nets?

24 A. Well, during 2003 through 2005, the
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1 MS. TIPSORD: Then let’s go ahead to ELPC.

2 EXAMINATION

3 BY MS. DEXTER:

4 Q. I’m Jessica Dexter for ELPC. I think

5 we’ve covered most of what’s on here, but I’m going

6 to ask you some questions, too. In about what

7 percentage of the CAWS has rotenone or another

8 poison been placed for Asian carp?

9 A. Almost 11 percent.

10 Q. Has the Metropolitan Water Reclamation

11 District ever studied how fluid that’s discharge

12 from the sewage treatment plants are effecting

13 growth or population of bighead or silver carp in

14 downstream waters?

15 A. No.

16 MS. DEXTER: Thank you.

17 MS. TIPSORD: All right. Let’s take a short

18 break, so we can readjust, and we’ll move on to

19 Midwest Generation.

20 (WHEREUPON, a recess was had from

21 10:18 a.m. to 10:33 a.m.)

22 MS. TIPSORD: We’re ready to begin with

23 Midwest Generation’s questions.

24 MS. FRANZETTI: Good morning. My name is
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Page 68

1 amount of monitoring activities currently taking

2 place in the CAWS are likely to take a toll on the

3 resident fish population,” end quote. Given that

4 annual fish monitoring has gone on in the past in

5 the CAWS, how is the current monitoring

6 unprecedented?

7 A. Well, the District’s current monitoring

8 in the CAWS, as I mentioned, is on a four-year

9 rotational basis except for -- I think it’s eight

10 stations in the CAWS that we monitor annually. And

11 the kind of monitoring that we’re talking about

12 going on now, the multiagency effort is -- every

13 week, there’s some kind of sampling going on in the

14 CAWS. There’s five fixed stations that they’re --

15 that they’re monitoring every other week, and then

16 there’s also some sampling that they -- just

17 continuous electrofishing that they’re doing along

18 the banks of the entire CAWS basically over time.

19 Q. Okay.

20 A. And then, of course, there’s commercial

21 fishermen coming up and doing trawling efforts and

22 other netting techniques. So it’s just -- the

23 effort is incredibly higher than it has been in the

24 past.
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1 follow-ups. Ms. Franzetti asked you how long the

2 fish take to recover after the rotenoning in the -—

3 I guess the Lower CAWS. Below the rotenone or above

4 the rotenone that you were talking about that you

5 looked at?

6 THE WITNESS: The particular -— I think her

7 question was referring to below the barrier and

8 above Lockport Lock where the rotenone zone was. So

9 the station that I referred to is right near the

10 Lockport Lock in the Ship Canal where we collect

11 fish and —-

12 MR. ETTINGER: And how did the fish recover

13 at all?

14 THE WITNESS: How did they recover at all?

15 Like where did the --

16 MR. ETTINGER: Yeah, where -- what -- why do

17 you think there are fish there at all?

18 THE WITNESS: They can move in through the

19 Lock.

20 MR. ETTINGER: Through the Lock from?

21 THE WITNESS: Through Lockport Lock.

22 MR. ETTINGER: Through the Lockport Lock from

23 the Lower Des Plaines -—

24 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.
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1 MR. ETTINGER: -- or from the Upper Des

2 Plaines at that point?

3 THE WITNESS: Yes.

4 MR. ETTINGER: Thank you.

5 MS. TIPSORD: Any other questions?

6 Thank you, Ms. Wasik. It’s been a

7 pleasure.

8 (WHEREUPON, the witness was

9 excused.)

10 MS. TIPSORD: All right. We will move to the

11 American Waterways Operators.

12 (WHEREUPON, a recess was had from

13 10:51 a.m. until 10:53 a.m.)

14 MS. TIPSORD: Before we get to the actual

15 testimony, I understand that Tern O’Brien is unable

16 to make it today due to an emergency. So we will

17 move Ms. O’Brien’s testimony from testimony to a

18 public\comment, and I’ll have the Clerk’s Office

19 take care of that this afternoon. And ——

20 MR. GERARD: Her name is Tern Doyle.

21 MS. TIPSORD: Doyle, I’m sorry.

22 MR. GERARD: Not the head of the District.

23 MS. TIPSORD: I am so sorry. I do have --

24 and I actually wrote O’Brien at the prehearing
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1 conference the other day, so I’m sorry. Is it

2 T—e—r—r—i?

3 MR. GERARD: Yes.

4 MS. TIPSORD: D—o-y-l—e?

5 MR. GERARD: Yes.

6 MS. TIPSORD: All right. I will have John

7 move that to a public comment.

8 And then with that, gentlemen, I’ll have

9 you each sworn in, and then we’ll have you introduce

10 yourselves. And then if you’ll give me a copy of

11 your testimony, we’ll enter it and mark them as

12 referred.

13 And also, Mr. Kindra, I just wanted to

14 thank you for rearranging your schedule today.

15 (WHEREUPON, the witnesses were duly

16 sworn.)

17 MS. TIPSORD: And if you could introduce

18 yourselves.

19 DARREN MELVIN,

20 JOHN KINDRA,

21 DELBERT WILKINS,

22 called as witnesses herein, having been first duly

23 sworn, were examined and testified as follows:

24 MR. MELVIN: Darren Melvin with Hanson
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Page 92

1 one big unit hardwired -- hardwired to the boat,

2 then sparking and arcing does not occur.

3 MR. ANDES: Does that mean that you’re

4 occupying most of the space in the waterway with —-

5 are they positioned laterally, the boats, or --

6 MR. WILKINS: The -- or you can answer that,

7 John.

8 MR. MELVIN: The tow configuration can vary.

9 But what John’s saying is that by connecting barge

10 to barge to barge with steel cables -— it’s like

11 having one long piece of copper wiring in your

12 household. You can grab that, and you’re fine. But

13 if there’s two pieces that are bumping back and

14 forth together, you better not touch those because

15 you’re going to get a jolt out of them. Same

16 scenario.

17 MR. ANDES: And you’ve got a long line of

18 wire that’s all connected?

19 MR. WILKINS: True.

20 MR. MELVIN: Yes.

21 MR. WILKINS: Which is standard operating

22 procedure connected by a series of wires and

23 turnovers.

24 MR. TESHER: This is Ariel Tesher from --
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1 MR. KINDRA: I’m sorry, where -- what

2 question number is it? What question number?

3 Because I have ——

4 MS. TIPSORD: It’s —-

5 MS. WILLIAMS: What do you mean? What are

6 you asking me? Do I have a list of questions?

7 MS. TIPSORD: At the bottom of page two of

8 your testimony.

9 MR. KINDRA: Okay. Could you please repeat

10 the question for me.

11 MS. WILLIAMS: Sure. I would just like you

12 to explain a sentence from page two of your

13 testimony. It’s the very last sentence. And I’m

14 counting this from where -- you know, I’m not

15 counting the latter but then --

16 MR. KINDRA: Okay. I see where you are. You

17 don’t have to repeat it.

18 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. Thank you.

19 MR. KINDRA: I had heard that in the state of

20 Colorado —- and I don’t have specifics, so. That

21 the State of Colorado was able to invoke the

22 provisions of the Invasive Species Act over the

23 provisions of the Clean Water Act.

24 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay.
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1 MR. KINDRA: And so that was my --

2 MS. WILLIAMS: That’s what you’re --

3 MR. KINDRA: That’s what I’m referring to

4 here.

5 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. Thank you.

6 MS. TIPSORD: Anything further?

7 MS. WILLIAMS: I don’t think so.

8 MS. TIPSORD: Okay. Gentlemen, thank you

9 very much.

10 MR. WILKINS: Thank you.

11 MR. KINDRA: You’re welcome.

12 MR. MELVIN: Thanks.

13 (WHEREUPON, the witnesses were

14 excused.)

15 MS. TIPSORD: And let’s go off the record for

16 just one moment.

17 (WHEREUPON, a recess was had from

18 11:17 a.m. to 11:21 a.m.)

19 MS. TIPSORD: I want to thank everyone again

20 for all your professionalism. And we’ll see you

21 next year. Thank you. We’re adjourned.

22 (WHEREUPON, at 11:22 a.m. the

23 hearing adjourned.)

24
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1 STATE OF ILLINOIS

2 ) SS:

3 COUNTYOFW ILL)

4

5 I, JENNIFER L. WIESCH, a Certified

6 Shorthand Reporter of the State of Illinois, do

7 hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the

8 proceedings had at the hearing aforesaid, and that

9 the foregoing is a true, complete and correct

10 transcript of the proceedings of said hearing as

11 appears from my stenographic notes so taken and

12 transcribed under my personal direction.

13 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my

14 hand at Chicago, Illinois, this 23rd day of

15 November, 2010.

16

17

18 Certified Shorthand Reporter

19

20 C.S.R. Certificate No. 84—4528.

21

22

23

24
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